
IN THE DISTRICT COURT 
OF SHAWNEE COUNTY,' KANSAS 

ERIC, and RYANMONTOY, by and through their ) 
father and~extfriehd, Reuben Montoy;CHEROKEE, ) 
LA.J't]ANapd MVTESHARO.BINS0N, byand,through ' ' ) 

" tlieirihotherandneXtfrleIld,EaniestineRobinsQ1l;' , ' ) 
SIERRAandSEtH:GWIN,byat1cfthtoughtheh'mother ' ) 

'~ndt1exffrjen~l, Kiin1)erlyOwin; RENEBBSS, by and ) 
• through his grandfather a11dnexffdend, EadBess, Jr.; ) 
, KEELY aOYCE by and thrOligh her mother and next ' ) 

friend Kenna Boyce; CRUlZ CEDILLO, by ahd through ) 
, hislllothe(and next fricl1d,SandraDelgado; LYNETTE ) 
po, by and through her mother and next friend, Lieu Do; ) 

,'·EzekiulatidEMERALD ,GARCIA, by and' tlu'ough their ) 
, motller and next friend, EyangelinaGarcia; , ) 
CHR[STC)PHp;RANDMONIQUE HARDING, by and ) 
'thrqllgh their. niotherajldnexl.fHend~Phyllis Harding; , ) 
JOSEPH HA.WKINSON,by' and through' his mother and ) 
.next friend, Melody Hawkinson;LAURlMA YNES, by ) 
andthroughherfathennd nextfriend~Robert Mayne:~; ) 
JENNIE NGUYEN. by and through her father and next ) 
friend, Phillip Nguyen; SHASTA OAKS, by and through ) 
her tTIotherandnextfriend, MaryLu Tripplitt; SANDY, ) 
NICOLEand BRUCE THU l'HJ\M, by and throu{.!.h their ) 
fatherand'llext friend, DaTlui Pham; ANDREA BETHKE, ) 

"'by and, through her mother andnextftiend, Linda Betilke; ) 
,IJNlFlEDSGHOOL DISTRICTNO. 443; and UNIFIED ) 
'SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.305, ' ' ) 

P1aintiffs, 

v. 

THE STATE OF KANSAS; BILL ORA YES, in his 
official capacity as the governor of the State of Kansas; 
LlNDAtroLLOWAY; in her official capacity as the 
cbairpersonofthe State Board of Education; andANDY 

, TOr\IPK1NS, inhisofiicial capacity as commissioner of 
the State Department of E<1ucation, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Defendants. ) 

-------------------) 
Pursuant to K.S.A. Chapter 60 
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PETITION 

COME NOW the plaintiffs in the above-captioned matter, and fortheir Petition against 

the above-named defendants, allege ailllstate asfollows: 

Parties 

1. Plaintiffs Cherokee, LaJuf.ln and Mytesha Robinson are African·American 

students attending public school in UnifiedScbooi Distnct No. 443. Cberokee, LaJl.uin and, 
. . 

Mytesha Robinsoll are residents atldcitizeris ·ofthestate of Kansas and the United States'of 

. America. 
. . . 

2. Plaintiffs Eric. and Ryan Montoy are Hispanic students attendi~lg public school in 

Unified School District No. 305. Eric and Ryan Montoy are citizens and residents ofthe state of 

Kansas and the United States. 

3. Plaintiffs Sierra and Seth Gwin are disabled students as defined' by the 

.' . 

". Rehabilitation Act of 1973,29 U.S:c.§ 701 et seq. Sierra and Seth Gwin'attendpublic school in 

UnifiedS()hool District No.' 305aildar(~ citizens' and residents ~f the state of Kansas, and the U.s. 

4. Plaintiff Rene Bess is an African;.Ametican student attending public school in 

Unified School District No. 305. Rene Bess is a citizen and resident of the state of Kansas ai1d 

the U.S. 

5. . PlaintitfKeely Boyce is a disabled student attending public school in Unified 

School District No. 305. Keely Boyce is a citizen and resident of the state of Kansas and the 

U.S. 

6. Plaintiff Cruiz Cedillo is an Hispanic student attending public school in Unified 

School District No. 443. Cniiz Cedillo is a citizen and resident of the state of Kansas and the 

United States of America, 
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7; Plaintiff Lyilette Obis an Asian-American student attending pUbiiC sthooliI1 

Unified School District No. 443. Lynette Do isa'citizenand resident"ofthe state afKansas and, 

the u.s. 

8. Plaintiffs Ezekial and Emerald Garcia are Hispanic students attending public 

school inUnified School District N6.443. Ezekial and Emerald Garcia are citiZens and residents 

ofth~ state of Kansas and the United$tates. 

9. . Piaintiffs Christopher and Monique Harding are African-American ~tlldents 

attending public scbool in Unified School District No. 443. Christopher and MOllique Harding 

are residents and citizeilsofthe state of Kansas and the United States. 

10. Plaintiff Joseph Hawkinson js adisabledstlldent attending public school in 

Unified School District No. 305. Joseph Hawkinson is a residelltand citizen of the state of 

.' Kansas and the United States. 

11. Plaintiff Lauri Maynes is an Hispanic studellt attending public schooUn Unified 

School District No. 305. Laud Maynes is a citizen and resident of the state of Kansas and the 

United States. 

12. Plaintiff Jennie Nguyen is an Asian-American student attending public school in 

UilitiedSchool District No. 443. Jennie Nguyen is a citizen and resident of the state of Kansas 

and the United States. 

13. Plaintiff Shasta Oaks is an African-American student attending public school in 

UnifIed SchooL District No. 305. Shasta Oaks is a citizen and resident of the state of Kansas· and 

the United States. 
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14. Plaintiffs Sandy, Nicole and BruceThu Pham are Vietnamese students attending 

ptlbHc school in Unified School District No. 305. Sandy. Nicole and Bruce Thu Pharo are lega:! 

residchts of the state of Kansas arid the United States. . .. 

. . . . . 

.15. ·Plaintiff Andrea Bethke is a disabled student as defined by the Rehabilitation Act 

of 1973. 29 U.S.C. § 701 e/seq. Andrea-Bethke attends public school in Unified School District 

No. 443 and is n citizen undresident of the state afKansas and the United States. 

16. Plaintiff Unified School District No. 443 is a school district .formed pursuant to 

!ltnte law and is located in Dodge City. Kansas; U.S.!). No. 443 possesses the power to sue and .... 

be sucd purSLiantto state statute. 

J7.PJaintiff Unified School Dlstrict No. 305 is a school district formed pursuant to 

stale law and is located in Salina, Kansas. U.S.D. No. 305 possesses the power to sue and be 

sued under slate statute. 

18. Defendant Stuteo[ Kansas is a state governmental entity and may be served with 
. . 

PI'!)tcs'iby iic'rv;ng the KunsasAttorncyOeneml; Carla Stovall, at the Kansas Judicial Center,2nll 

Floot. 301W. 10th Street, Topeka, Kansas 66612-1597. 

19. Defendant BillGl'uvl;':s Is [he governol' of the State of Kansas and may be served 

with process by serving Lhe Kansas Attorney General, Carla Stovall, at the Kansas Judicial 

Center. 2ndFlotJf. 301 W. 10th Street, Topekn, Kansas 66612-1597. 

20. Defendant Linda Hollo\;my is the chairperson of the Kansas State Board of 

Educntillll. Defendant Holloway may be served with process at 120 S.E. 10lh Street, Topeka, 
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2.1. " Defendant Andy T()in-pkins is the commissioner ofthe Kansas' State Department 

9f Education';'Defendm1tTompkins may b~ served with process at 120 S.K lO'hSireet, Topeka, 

Kansas 66612. 

Jurisdiction and Venue . 

. 22. ..' TI1iscoult possess~s original jurisdiction over plaintiffs' claims arising tmder the . 

Kun~as .Constitution, pursuant toK.S.A.20~301. Vemieis proper in this CQUit,pursuaht to 

.. K.S.A:4o-602(2).· 

23. The Stuteof Kansas funds its public schools, grades K-I2, through the School 

District Finance and Quality Performance Act (SDFQP A), K.S.A. 72-6405 ef seq: Pursuant to 

this Act, all public school districts in the stale are allotted funds to operate their educational 

programs accordingtothe statutory funding formula. 

24; Uhderthe SDFQPA funding formula, each public school district receives a set· 

amount of money per student enrolled in the district. . This base rate, effective·July ,1;'1999, is 

$3770 per student. 

25. The base tate is adjusted by several factors, including low enrollment weighting. 

Public school districts with fewer thaJi 1725 students receive additional ftmds per student 

pursuant to low enrollment weighting. In many cases, public school districts qualifying for low 

enrollment weightitig receive l:norethan twice as many dollars per student as those districts 

which do not qualify for such weighting. 

26. The SDFQPA permits individual school districts to pass local option budgets 

. (LOBs) which supplement State funding. An LOB requires the levying of additional taxes and is 

dependent npon the al)proval of residents of the school district. A direct correlation exists 
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between the median income and property values in a school district and that district's ability to . 

raise funds through an LOB. School districts witl\ comparatively high median incomes and 

property values raise more funds through LOBs than those with comparatively low incomes and 

property values. 
. - . . '. 

27. Unified School DistricfNos. 443 and 305 enroll toomanystudentsto quaJlfy for· 

Iowenrolll11enfweighting~ They also do not have full LOBs. Under the SDFQPA, these school 

dish;iCts have fewel'dollarsperpupilto spend than do those districts who receive low enrollment 

weighting and/or have fhll LOBs. 

2E~ Dile to this lack . of funding, tbe plaintiff school children and others like them in 

UnifiedScpool DistrictNos. 443 and 105 attend schools with inadequate resources for teaching. 

These inadequacies include, .. blltarenot limited to, .inferior curricula, too few qualified teachers 

and pooravailability.ofbooks, computers and other learning materials, . 

29. This lack of funding has resulted in inadequate educational outcomes for the 

plaintiff school children and otbel' students like them in Unified School District Nos. 443 and 

305; Their educational opportunities are diminished witb respect to their ability to learn 

sufficient oral and written communication skills; to obtain adequate knowledge of economic, 

social aJid political systems to enable them to make infonned. choices; to obtain a sufficient 
. . 

understanding of govemmental processes; to attain sufficient self· knowledge· and Imowledgeof 

his or her mental and physical well ness; 10 acquire a sufficient grounding in the arts to enable 

them Lo appreciate their cultural and historical heritage; to attain sufficient training or preparation 

for advUllced training in academic and/or vocational fields so as to enable them to choose and 

. pursue life work intelligently; and to attain sufficient levc1sof learning and vocational skills to 

clUlblc thclli Lo compete favorably with their counterparts in other states and/or in the job market. 

-
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CounU: Suitability of Ftindin;rUnder the Kansas Constitution 

30.' Plaintiffs incorporate ,by reference the allegations . contained in paragraphs 1-27· 

· abbveasthollgh ti.111)lset ci~t hereill .• 
. -" 

Articl,e60f the Kifisas Constitution compels the. legislature '. to· provide for. the 

" ~dricational interests ofthc'StateofKansasalld further commands it to·make·suitable provision. 

. for the financing of said educ~tional interests. 

32. As demonstrated in practice over the past four years, the. SDFQPA's finance 

· f()1'Jnul~faHsto Inake suitable provision for financing the education of public school students, in 

violation of the Kansas Constitution, Article 6, § 6. In practice the SDFQPA hasundei:funded 
. . 

theplaintifr school districts and has deprived the plaintiff school children oIa constitutionally 

adequate educa:tion. 

33. In particular, the SDFQPA's funding fOTIlmla has resulted in: adverse educational 

outcomes Lo the plaintHl' school children and other students similarly situated. These students 

find themselves trapped in a system of education which has too little money to spend on them 

Hnd which thus adversely uile:cts the quality of education available to them." These students 
. . . 

. teceive a constitutionally inadequate education chan;cterizec1 by adverse educriti()i1al outComes, 

· including, but uotlimitcd to: pOOl' standardized test scores; high dropout and tru811CY rates; and 

. victimizationti'om violent crimes at school. These adverse outcoinesare directly tied to the 

unsuilnhlc and inadequale funding provided to the students' school districts by the SDFQP A's 

school funding formula. 

34. Pluinlin's Unified School District Nos. 443 and 305 also have suffered injllrY due. 

to the SDFQPA '$ fiJiiure to provide 5uitablc funding for those districts. The Kansas Constitution 

and stutc stl}lUlcs imposl..' upon them a duty to develop, maintain and operate the schools within 
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their districts. Due to lackoffunding under the SDFQPA, they facepot~ntiallegal Iiabilityfor , 
" , 

, t'aiiil1g to,llpholdtheseduties. Filrther. the plaintiff school districts 'havesllffered actuaCillJury , 
. .". . .' .. 

due to the adverse economic impact theSDFQPAvisits lipon them. Finally, the plaintiff school 

districtsstarici in dose ~elationship to the rights asserted by the plaintiff school children in this 

action. As speh, the plaintiff school districts possess standing to pursue this litigation. 

35. 'The plaintiffs named in thislawsult, as well as all students enrolled in Unified 
. . . - . 

School District No~. 443 and 305, have suffered andconthllle to suffer injury as a result of 

defe.ndants' violationoftheKaiisasCOJistititutiol1, Article 6, § 6. The quality of education 

providedtothe plaintiff school (;;hildrenand atI public school students in U.S.D. Nos; 443 and 

305 have not been suitably provided for under the SDFQPA. 

Count II: Equal Protection . 
36. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1-33 

above as though fully set out herein. 

37. The SDFQPAviolates the rights of plaintiffs in this action to equal protection of 

the laws guaranteed by Sections 1-2 oftheBill of Rights to the Kansas Constitution. 

38. As demonstrated in practice over the past four years, the SDFQPA results in 

invidious discrimination detritnental to plaintiffs. The SDFQPA treats similarly sitUated stlidents 

differently, depending on the number ofstudents enrolled in their school districts and the relative, 

v..'ealth and political advantage ofthosedistl'icts. 

39. The SDFQPA's funding formula, including but not limited to its low enrollment 

weighting and LOB provisions, lacks Hny reasonable basis and bears no rational relationship to 

legitimate legislative o~jectives. In particular. as demonstrated in practice over the past four 

years, the low cnrol1ment weighting threshold is so wide of the mark as to be arbitrary and 
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llrireasonabk ' Practice has shown that through the LOB, the Slate has abt;licated its 

c()nstitutionaiduty to provide suitable' funding for. all public schools and has . arbitrarily and 
, .- " .. 

.. . unreas9nablyfavored studentsenroUed inwea:lthy alldpoliticallyadvantaged school districts' 

over those lessJortimate. 

40. '. TheplaiIitiff school children in this action have been adversely affected as a result 
. . - . . 

. ofdefel1darits'~nequal'appIication of the law. , TheSDFQPA 's funding fonnulahasresuHed in 

adverse educational outc~mes to the plaintiff school children, as discussed· in paragraph 31 

above. In addition, the plaintiff school childreri receive lewer educational opportunities in tem)s 

of facilities and programs offered in comparison to similarly situated lJublic school students in 

'other districts which receive more money under the SDFQP A' s funding fomlu)a~ 

41. Plaintiffs Unified School DistrictNos. 443~ll1d 305 also have suffered injury due 

tod<;:fendants' violation of equal protection rights guaranteed by the Kansas Constitution. 111cse 
, . 

, . 

injuriesinc1ude, but are not limited to, those described in paragraph 32 above. 

42. The plaintiffs named in this lawsuit, as well as all students enrolled in Unified 

School District Nos. 443 and 305, have suffered and continue to suffer injury as a result of 

defendants' violation of the equal protection clause of the Kansas Constitution, 

Count TIl: Due ·Process 

43. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1-40, 

above as through fully set out herein. 

44. The SDFQP A violates the rights of plaintiffs in this action to substantive due 

process, guaranteed by Sections 1-2 and 18 of the Bill of Rights to the Kansas Constitution. 

45. As demonstrated ill practice Dvet' the past four years, the SDFQPA's funding 

formula bears no real and substantial relation to the objectives sought in its passage. The 
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fU\~ding formula, including but not limited to the low enrollment weighting and LOB provisions. 

distribtitesllloniestopublic schoul districts.in an arbitrary and capricious manner. 
. . 

46. 'Th~plail1tiff s9hoolchi'ldreriin this actionha,'ebeen adversely affecteclas ar~su1t 
. '. 

ofthis deprivation of their due process rights. TheSDFQPA's funding formula has resulted in 

adverse educational outcomes to the plaintiff school children, as discussed ih paragraphs' 31 arid 

38abQve. 

47. . Plaintiffs UnifiedSc!iool District Nos. 443 and 305 likewisehavesuftered injury . 

. due totheSDFQPNs. violation of due process rights guaranteed by the Kansas ConstitLltion~ 

. Theseinjuries i~clude)butaJ'e not limited to, those described in paragraph 32abClve.· 
. . 

48. The phii:htiffs named in this lawsuit, as well asaHstudents enrolled in Unified. 

School District Nos. 443 and 305, have suffered and continue to suffer injury as a result of 

d~feridants' violation of their due process rights guaranteed by the Kansas Constitution. 

Relief Request 

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs respectfully request the following relief: 

a. ajliclgment declaring the SDFQPA to be in violation of the Kansas Constitution; 

b. a permarient injunction prohibiting defendants from' administering, enforcing 

and/or funding those provisions of the SDFQPA which are unconstitutional; 

c. : their reasonable attorney fees incurred in litigating this action; 

d. the costs of this action; and 

c. such otheralld further relief as the court deems just and equitable. 

::ODMAIPCnOCS\W1CHITAI18247\1 10 

"i :'," " 

I 
! . 



.-.: : .... 

, Alan L. Rtll?e -, _ :#08914 
Kelly J.~JOh '_- on - - #17577 
HUSCH ,PPENBERGER, LLC 
Epic Ce er.Suite 1400 
301 N. Main,Suite 1400 
Wichita;Kans~s6720i -
(316) 264-3339 
(FAX) 264~0135 

and 

J6hn S. Robl) ,(#09844) 
SOMERS, ROBE AND ROnS 
110 E. Brbadway 
Box 544 
Newton, Kansas 67114-0544 
(316) 283-4560 
(FAX) 283-5049 

Attorneys for Plaintiffs 

I>EMANDFOR JURY TRIAL 

-': .... , 
- ,-

COME- NOW the plaintift:<;, by and through counsel,and respectfully request a trial by 

jury of oil isslIesin this action. 

;{JD\1A\I'CllCl\:·';\W1CfIlTAI/ll2.\7\1 

---..... ~. 

A an 1. Ri\E.eI - #08914 
Kelly J. J I ;8011 #17577 
I-IUSCH '.' :<..PPENBERGER, LLC 
Epic Celller, Suite 1400 
301 N. Main, Suite 1400 
Wichita, Kansas 67202 
(316) 264-3339 
(FAX) 264-0135 

and 
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JohnS. Rol:ib . (#09&44) 
SOMERS, ROBE AND ROBE 
110 KBroadway 
Box 544 . 
Newton; Kansas 67H4-0544 
(316)283~4560 

.. (FAX) 283~5049 

Attomeys forPlail1tiffs 
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